
 

AGENDA FOR 
 
LICENSING AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 

 
Contact: Michael Cunliffe 

Direct Line: 0161 253 5399 
E-mail: m.cunliffe@bury.gov.uk 
Website:  www.bury.gov.uk 

 
 
To: All Members of Licensing and Safety Committee 
 

Councillors : I Rizvi (Chair), N Bayley, A Booth, R Brown, 

J Grimshaw, J Hook, B Ibrahim, G Marsden, G McGill, 
D Quinn and J Rydeheard 

 
 
Dear Member/Colleague 

 
Licensing and Safety Committee 

 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Licensing and Safety 
Committee which will be held as follows:- 

 

Date: Thursday, 5 September 2024 

Place:  Council Chamber, Bury Town Hall 

Time: 7.00 pm 

Briefing 

Facilities: 

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require 
briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the 
appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the related 

report should be contacted. 



AGENDA 

 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 

2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
Members of the Licensing and Safety Panel are asked to consider whether they 
have an interest in any of the matters on the agenda, and if so, to formally declare 
that interest.   
 

3   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 3 - 8) 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on the 18th July 2024 are attached. Members of the 
Licensing and Safety Committee are asked to consider whether these are a correct 
record of the meeting, and if so, to formally approve them. 

 

4   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   
 
Questions are invited from members of the public present at the meeting on any 
matters for which this Panel is responsible. 
 
Approximately 30 minutes will be set aside for Public Question Time if required. 

 

5   OPERATIONAL REPORT  (Pages 9 - 14) 

 
A report from the Executive Director (Operations) is attached. 

 

6   REVIEW OF TRANSITIONAL ARRANGEMENTS FOR EXISTING 

HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES IN RESPECT OF 
EMISSIONS STANDARDS  (Pages 15 - 28) 

 
A report from the Executive Director (Operations) is attached. 

 

7   URGENT BUSINESS   

 
Any other business, which by reason of special circumstances, the Chair agrees may 
be considered as a matter of urgency. 

 

8   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC   

 
To consider passing the appropriate resolution under section 100 (A)(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following item of business since it involves the likely disclosure 
of the exempt information stated. 
 

9   SUSPENSION / REVOCATION OF PUBLIC / PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER 
LICENCES  (Pages 29 - 50) 

 
A report from the Executive Director (Operations) is attached. 

 



 

 

1 

 
 Minutes of: LICENSING AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 
 Date of Meeting: 18 July 2024 

 
 Present: Councillor I Rizvi (in the Chair) 

Councillors A Booth, J Grimshaw, J Hook, B Ibrahim, G Marsden, 
G McGill, D Quinn, J Rydeheard and G Staples-Jones 
 

 Also in attendance: M Bridge- Licensing Unit Manager 
M Cunliffe – Democratic Services 
C Riley – Legal Advisor  
C Smith- Head of Public Protection 
B Thomson- Assistant Director of Operations Strategy 
 

 Public Attendance: 1 member of the public was present at the meeting. 

   

 

LSP.1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were submitted by Councillor N Bayley. 
Councillor G Staples-Jones  acted as a substitute representative for Councillor Bayley. 
Councillor R Brown was absent from the meeting. 
 

LSP.2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
Councillor Rydeheard declared an interest that in his employment he had worked on a number 
of cases involving both Private Hire and Hackney Carriage drivers.  
 
Councillor Marsden declared an interest in case 6/2024 due to him working for the same 
national employer as the Licence Holder in their other employment outside the taxi trade. 
 

LSP.3  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
Delegated decision:  

 
That the Minutes of the last meeting held on the 6th June 2024 be approved as a correct 
record and signed by the Chair. 
 

LSP.4  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  

 
No questions had been pre submitted to the meeting. 
 
One member of the public was in attendance at the meeting and asked for an update on 
private hire drivers identity badges. He had raised the issue at the last committee in June. 
 
The Licensing Unit Manager reported the process was still on going as it involved a  
procurement exercise and no further update could be provided at this moment in time. 
 

LSP.5  OPERATIONAL REPORT  

 
The Executive Director (Operations) submitted a report advising Members on operational 
issues within the Licensing Service.  
 
The report set out updates in respect of the following issues: 
 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



Licensing and Safety Committee, 18 July 2024  

 
 

 

2 

The Licensing Service had dealt with a number of compliance and enforcement 
matters between the 27th May and the 30th June 2024. 
 
MULTI AGENCY WORK 
 
Parklife 8th & 9th June 2024 
Officers from the Public Protection Service worked in partnership with Greater Manchester 
Police over the duration of the festival. Officers dealt with matters relating to visits to licensed 
premises, Bury licensed vehicles, out of town licensed vehicles, pedlars certificates, street 
trading and illicit tobacco. Illicit tobacco was seized and water was seized from an illegal street 
trader and advice were provided as required. 
 
On the 27th June 2024, officers from Public Protection worked in partnership with Greater 
Manchester Police as a result of intelligence received regarding a storage unit containing 
equipment for production of illicit tobacco. Officers seized 28,000 pieces of hand rolling 
tobacco packaging and the machine for mixing the hand rolling tobacco. 
 
IMMEDIATE SUSPENSION OF PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS LICENCES 
 
On the 3rd June 2024, the Licensing Service received intelligence from Greater Manchester 
Police regarding a private hire driver. Due to the nature of the intelligence the Head of Public 
Protection in consultation with the Chair of the Licensing and Safety Committee decided to 
immediately suspend their private hire driver’s licences in the interests of Public Safety. 
 
On the 18th June 2024, the Licensing Service received a fit note regarding a private hire driver. 
Due to the content contained on the fit note the Licensing Unit Manager in consultation with 
the Chair of the Licensing and Safety Committee decided to immediately suspend their private 
hire driver’s licences in the interests of Public Safety. 
 

Councillor D Quinn on behalf of herself and fellow ward Councillors placed on record their 
thanks to the Licensing Department for the work undertaken at Parklife which was conducted 
in very wet weather. 
 
Delegated decision:  
 

It was agreed that the report be noted. 
 

LSP.6  URGENT BUSINESS  
 

No urgent business was reported at the meeting. 
 

LSP.7  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  

 
Delegated decision:  

 
That in accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and 
public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following items of business 
since it involved the likely disclosure of information relating to individuals who hold Licences 
granted by the Authority or Applicants for Licences provided by the Authority.  
 

LSP.8  SUSPENSION / REVOCATION OF PUBLIC / PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCES  

 
Licence Holder 8/2024 
 

Page 4



 Licensing and Safety Committee, 18 July 2024 
 
 

 
3 

The Executive Director (Operations) submitted a report relating to Licence Holder 8/2024 who 
was in attendance at the meeting alongside their legal representative. The Chair made 
introductions and alongside the legal advisor outlined the procedure to be followed and 
clarified that all those present had read the report. The report, which was accepted by the 
Licence Holder and their representative was presented by the Licensing Unit Manager and set 
out the reasons for the Licence Holder being before the Committee.  
 
Members of the Committee had been sent a video recording taken from a dashcam 
demonstrating the incident detailed in the report. This video was also played on a screen to 
Members of the Committee with the Licence Holder and their representative in attendance. 
 
The Licensing Unit Manager reported that the Licence Holder had held a private hire driver’s 
licence continually since August 2006. Their current driver’s licence was due to expire in 
November 2025.  
 
On the 14th May 2024, the Licensing Service were notified of a complaint via email regarding 
an incident that had occurred with a private hire vehicle. 
 
Delegated decision: 
 

The Committee carefully considered the report and oral representations by the Licence Holder 
and their representative. 
 
Taking into account the Council’s Conviction Policy and Guidelines and in accordance with the 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, the Committee resolved to revoke 
the licence with immediate effect on the grounds of public safety.  

  
The Committee felt the Licence Holder was not a fit and proper person to be a professional 
driver and hold a licence due to the serious nature of the incident detailed in the report and 
evidenced via dashcam footage which fell well below that of a professional driver and the 
required standard of driving.  
 
Licence Holder 9/2024 

 
The Executive Director (Operations) submitted a report relating to Licence Holder 9/2024 who 
was in attendance at the meeting alongside their representative. The Chair made introductions 
and alongside the legal advisor outlined the procedure to be followed and clarified that all 
those present had read the report. The report, which was accepted by the Licence Holder and 
their representative was presented by the Licensing Unit Manager and set out the reasons for 
the Licence Holder being before the Committee.  
 
The Licensing Unit Manager reported that the Licence Holder had held a Private Hire Drivers 
Licence from the 13th December 2017. Their current driver’s licence was due to expire on the 
10th November 2024. (* See note under delegated decision) 
 
This client has received two previous complaints on the 11th March 2021 and the 2nd October 
2021. On the 15th May 2024 the Licensing Service received a complaint from a member of the 
public. The Licensing Service received a further complaint on the 27th June 2024. 
 
Members of the Committee had been sent 2 video recordings taken from a rear angle 
dashcam demonstrating part of one incident detailed in the report. This video was also played 
on a screen to Members of the Committee with the Licence Holder and their representative in 
attendance. 
 
Delegated decision: 

Page 5



Licensing and Safety Committee, 18 July 2024  

 
 

 

4 

 
The Committee carefully considered the report and oral representations by the Licence Holder 
and their representative. 
 
Taking into account the Council’s Conviction Policy and Guidelines and in accordance with the 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, the Committee resolved to suspend 
the licence with immediate effect until the 10th November 2024* on the grounds of public 
safety.  
    
The Committee felt the Licence Holder was not a fit and proper person to be a professional 
driver and hold a licence due to the serious nature of the incident detailed in the report and 
evidenced via dashcam footage which fell well below that of a professional driver and the 
required standard of driving.  
 
*Following the meeting, it was reported there was an administrative error in the report. 

The private hire drivers badge expiry should have stated the 11/10/2025 and not 10/11/2024 
(this was the expiry date of their vehicle licence). 
 
After discussions, it was agreed by all parties that the minutes would detail the error and the 
driver would still be immediately suspended until the 10/11/2024. 
 
Licence Holder 6/2024 

 
The Executive Director (Operations) submitted a report relating to Licence Holder 6/2024. The 
Licensing Unit Manager reported that the Licence Holder was not present at the last 
committee on the 6th June 2024 as they were unwell and a request for a deferral was granted. 
 
The Licensing Unit Manager stated the Licence Holder had requested another deferral as they 
had started a new job and were unable to gain the time off work. If this was not granted then a 
written statement had been supplied to read out on their behalf. 
 
Delegated decision: 
 
The Licencing and Safety Committee agreed that due to this being the second time in 
succession the case was listed on the agenda, then the case would be considered in the 
absence of the Licence Holder. 
 
The Licensing Unit Manager read out the statement provided by the Licence Holder and 
reported this client has held a private hire driver’s licence since the 16th October 2015. 
 
This driver was before members for consideration to be given as to his suitability to be a 
private hire driver in Bury. 
The Committee carefully considered the report and written representation provided by the 
Licence Holder. 
 
Delegated decision: 

 
Taking into account the Council’s Conviction Policy and Guidelines and in accordance with the 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, the Committee resolved to revoke 
the licence on the grounds of public safety.  

    
The Committee felt the Licence Holder was not a fit and proper person to be a professional 
driver and hold a licence due to the conduct of the incidents detailed in the report and fell well 
below that of a professional driver. 
 

Page 6



 Licensing and Safety Committee, 18 July 2024 
 
 

 
5 

 
 
COUNCILLOR I RIZVI 
Chair  

 
(Note:  The meeting started at 7.00pm and ended at 9.45pm) 

 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 

 

 

  

 

Meeting:  Licensing and Safety Committee 
 

Meeting date:  5 September 2024  
 

Title of report:  Operational Report 

Report by:  

 

Executive Director (Operations) 

Decision Type: N/A Report for information only 

Ward(s) to which 

report relates 
All 

 

 

Executive Summary:   

A report to advise members on operational issues within the Licensing service. 

Recommendation(s)  

That the report be noted. 

Key considerations  

Not applicable 

 

1.0 BACKGROUND  
 

1.1 The report advises Members on operational issues within the Licensing service. 

2.0 COMPLIANCE/ENFORCEMENT 

2.1 The Licensing Service have dealt with the following compliance and enforcement matters 

for the following periods:- 

Classification 
 
Open / Closed 

Item No. 

Page 9 Agenda Item 5



 

2.2 1 to 7 July  

 Clients 

 Complaint 5 

 Enforcement 5 

 Vehicles  

 Enforcement 7 

2.3 8 to 14 July  

 Clients 

 Complaint 3 

 Enforcement 4 

 Premises  

 Complaint 2 

 Multi Agency 10 

 Vehicles 

 Enforcement 9 

2.4 15 to 21 July 

 Clients  

 Complaint 6 

 Enforcement 11 

 Premises 

 Compliance 3 

 Enforcement 10 

 Vehicles 

 Enforcement 6 

2.5 22 to 28 July 

 Clients 

 Complaint 5 

 Enforcement 7 

 Operators 

 Enforcement 2 

 Premises 

Page 10



 

 Complaint 2 

 Compliance 2 

 Enforcement 2 

 Vehicles 

 Enforcement 7 

2.6 29 July to 4 August 

 Client 

 Complaint 6 

 Enforcement 8 

 Premises 

 Complaint 2 

 Compliance 3 

 Vehicles 

 Enforcement 4 

2.7 5 to 11 August 

 Client 

 Complaint 1 

 Enforcement 1 

            Other 1 

 Premises 

 Complaint 1 

 Enforcement 1 

            Other 1 

 Vehicles 

 Enforcement 2 

2.8 12 to 18 August 

 Client  

 Enforcement 4 

 Premises 

 Complaint 1 

 Enforcement 17 

Page 11



 

 Multi Agency 2 

 Compliance 5 

 Vehicles  

 Compliance 10 

 Enforcement 7 

3.0 LICENSING HEARINGS SUB-COMMITTEES 

3.1 On the 5 August 2024, an application for the grant of a premises licence at Best Local, 62 

Bolton Street, Bury BL0 0LL was due to be considered by the Licensing Hearings Sub-

Committee. The application attracted a representation from Trading Standards in their 

capacity as a Responsible Authority. Members of the Sub-Committee heard the evidence 

and resolved agreed unanimously that the Sub-Committee refuse the application for a 
Premises Licence.  

The Sub-Committee was therefore satisfied that on the balance of probability there was 

sufficient evidence presented that had demonstrated the following licensing objectives had 
not been met and failed the licensing objective:- 

 the prevention of crime and disorder 
 
The reasons given by the sub-committee, included: -  

 Three failed Trading Standards test purchase operations in the store. 

 An association with other stores that had also sold illegal vapes and cigarettes. 

The Sub-Committee found the situation concerning with the premises operating in such a 

way to undermine the licensing objectives. The evidence and supporting documents 

presented were deemed sufficient evidence to refuse the licence. 

 

3.2  On the 5 August 2024, an application for the grant of a premises licence at Asda PFS 

Blackford Bridge, Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 9ST was due to be considered by the 

Licensing Hearings Sub-Committee. The application attracted representations from Public 

Health in their capacity as a Responsible Authority and eight interested parties. Mediation 

had taken place prior to the Sub-Committee meeting between the applicant’s representative 

and the Public Health Department, and it was agreed that the hours for the retail sale of 

alcohol off the premises would be reduced to Monday to Sunday– 06:00 till 00:00 rather 
than Monday to Sunday– 00:00 till 00:00 as applied for.  

Members of the Sub-Committee heard the evidence and unanimously that the Sub- 

Committee grant the application for a Premises Licence in the amended terms requested. 

 

3.3 An application for an expedited review was received from GMP on 24 June 2024 in respect 

of Sky Bar, Kay Gardens, Bury due to an incident of serious crime and disorder. A hearing 

was held on 25 June 2024. The Sub-Committee resolved that in order to promote the said 

licensing objectives, it was necessary to impose interim steps and that these would be to 

modify the conditions to state that SIA registered door staff to be on duty at the Premises 

from 20:00 every night. The full review hearing was held on 19 July 2024. The Sub-

Committee resolved to modify the conditions of the licence and the interim steps were 

Page 12



 

withdrawn. No appeal was made during the appeal period therefore the licence was issued 

with the modified conditions.  

 
4.0 Fees and Charges  

 

4.1 Section 70(2) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, gives authority 

to a District Council to set the fees in relation to the Licensing of Hackney Carriage and 

Private Hire vehicles and also for Private Hire Operator licences. Having varied the fees the 

Council is required to advertise them in a local newspaper so as to allow persons wishing 

to object to them a period of 28 days from the date of publication of the notice to object.    

 

 The Licensing Service can confirm that no objections have been received during the 28 day 
period, therefore the fees have been implemented from the 22 August 2024 

_____________________________________________________________ 

Community impact / links with Community Strategy 

Not applicable  

_____________________________________________________________ 

Equality Impact and considerations: 

24. Under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, the ‘general duty’ on public authorities is set 

out as follows:  

A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to -  

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is 

prohibited by or under this Act;  

(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it;  

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 

and persons who do not share it.  

25. The public sector equality duty (specific duty) requires us to consider how we can positively 
contribute to the advancement of equality and good relations and demonstrate that we are 

paying ‘due regard’ in our decision making in the design of policies and in the delivery of 
services.  

Equality Analysis Please provide a written explanation of the outcome(s) of either 
conducting an initial or full EA. 

The Licensing Service have considered the Equality Act 2010 and due to each application 

being dealt with on its own merits there is no positive or negative on any of the protected 
characteristics. 

 

___________________________________________________________ 

Page 13



 

Assessment of Risk:  

The following risks apply to the decision:  

  

Risk / opportunity  Mitigation  

None .  

  

____________________________________________________________ 

Consultation: 

Not applicable  

_____________________________________________________________ 

Legal Implications: 

Not applicable 

_____________________________________________________________ 

 

Financial Implications: 

Not Applicable 

_____________________________________________________________  

  

Report Author and Contact Details: 

Mr M Bridge 
Licensing Unit Manager 
3 Knowsley Place 
Duke Street 
Bury 
BL9 0EJ Tel: 0161 253 5208   Email: m.bridge@bury.gov.uk  
 

____________________________________________________________ 

Please include a glossary of terms, abbreviations and acronyms used in this report.  

  

Term  Meaning  

None  

 

Page 14

mailto:m.bridge@bury.gov.uk


 

 

 

 

  

 

Meeting:  Licensing and Safety Committee 

Meeting date:  5 September 2024 - Licensing and Safety Committee 
11 September 2024 - Full Council 

Title of report:  Review of transitional arrangements for existing Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire vehicles in respect of emissions 
standards.  

Report by:  
 

Executive Director (Operations) 

Decision Type: Council 

Ward(s) to 
which report 

relates 

All 

 

Executive Summary  

This report outlines the proposal to amend the Council’s current policy relating to the 

transitional arrangements to enable vehicle proprietors of non-compliant hackney 

carriage and private hire vehicles to make a renewal application after the 1 January 

2025. The rationale for this relates to the recent submissions to Government with 

revised proposals around the GM Clean Air Plan and requirement from Government to 

ensure a GM agreed emissions standard for all Taxi and Private Hire vehicles by 31 

December 2025. 

Recommended Options 

It is recommended that the Licensing and Safety Committee considers and adopts the 

following amendment (1) to the existing emission standard and recommends to Full 
Council that amendment (1) be approved: 

For existing vehicle licence proprietors with a non-complaint vehicle: 

1. A vehicle proprietor of a hackney carriage and private hire vehicle licence that 
is due for renewal after the 1 January 2025 which is non-compliant with 
emission standards (EURO 4 Petrol vehicles and EURO 6 diesel vehicles) is 
permitted to make an application to renew the vehicle licence and provided the 
vehicle passes its compliance test it will be issued with a 12-month vehicle 
licence. The vehicle licence would be granted subject to a condition that the 

Classification 
 
Open / Closed 

Item No. 

Page 15 Agenda Item 6



 

 

non-compliant vehicle is removed from the fleet and replaced with a Euro 4 or 
6 compliant vehicle by the 31 December 2025. 

2. To delegate powers to the Head of Public Protection/Licensing Unit Manager 
and/or the Deputy Licensing Officer to suspend any vehicle licence that has been 
issued after the 1 January 2025 where the vehicle proprietor(s) have not 
complied with the condition to replace the non-compliant vehicle with a 
compliant vehicle by the 31 December 2025. 

3. To request delegation to the Head of Public Protection/Licensing Unit Manager 
in consultation with the Chair of the Licensing and Safety Committee to amend 
Council Policy that relates to the transitional arrangements for existing vehicle 
proprietors who own non-compliant vehicles to enable access to the clean taxi 
fund if it becomes available. Any decisions made would be reported in the 
Operational Report at the next meeting of the Licensing and Safety Committee. 

____________________________________________________________  

 Key considerations  

This is a Council Function that is delegated to the Licensing and Safety Committee by 

the Council’s Constitution. 

This paper is in the public domain. 

__________________________________________________________ 

Community impact / Contribution to the Bury 2030 Strategy 

The changes put forward in this report will facilitate more rapid improvement with 

clean air through facilitating the replacement of non-compliant (emission) vehicles for 

both hackney carriage and private hire vehicles. This could potentially help reduce the 

time it takes for these vehicles to be upgraded and become compliant with existing 

emissions standard leading to less carbon emissions and less tailpipe emissions. It will 

also enable access to the potential linked funding related to the revised GM Clean Air 

Plan submissions to Government which will assist licence holders with vehicle upgrade 
costs.  

____________________________________________________________ 

Equality Impact and considerations: 

Under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, the ‘general duty’ on public authorities is 

set out as follows:  

A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need 
to -  

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that 
is prohibited by or under this Act;  

(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic and persons who do not share it;  

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it.  

Page 16



 

 

The public sector equality duty requires us to consider how we can positively 
contribute to the advancement of equality and good relations and demonstrate 

that we are paying ‘due regard’ in our decision making in the design of policies 
and in the delivery of services.  

The Licensing Service have considered the Equality Act 2010 and due to each 
application being dealt with on its own merits there is no positive or negative on 

any of the protected characteristics.  

An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) was undertaken when the existing policy was 
implemented through a full governance process. This report seeks to permit those 

vehicle proprietors who currently own a non-compliant vehicle to submit a renewal 
application for a hackney carriage and private hire vehicle and subject to the vehicle 

passing its compliance test, it will be granted a 12-month licence. The renewed vehicle 
licence will be granted subject to a condition that the non-compliant vehicle will be 

replaced with a compliant Euro 4 Petrol or Euro 6 diesel by the 31 December 2025. 
By making the proposed amendments to Council Policy, vehicle proprietors who 

currently have a non-compliant vehicle will be able to access any potential funding 
available through the GM Clean GM Clean Air Plan. Conversely, if no change is made 

to the existing transitional arrangements this could be detrimental and financially 
disadvantage affected vehicle proprietors who will not be able to renew vehicle 

licences after 1 January 2025. 

___________________________________________________________ 

Assessment of Risk:  

The following risks apply to the decision:  

  

Risk / opportunity  Mitigation  

Opportunity: The adoption of the 
recommended amendments to existing 
transitional arrangements will enable the 
hackney carriage and private hire trade in 
Bury access any potential future GM 
funding linked to the revised submissions 
to Government regarding the GM Clean Air 
Plan. 
 
Risk: Maintaining existing transitional 
arrangements may jeopardise the 
revised submissions to Government 
regarding the GM Clean Air Plan and may 
prevent the hackney carriage and private 
hire trade in Bury accessing any potential 
future GM funding.  

There is no mitigation as the Council is 
bound by a Government Ministerial 
Directive in relation to Clean Air to only 
licence emissions compliant vehicles 
by 1 January 2026. 

  

____________________________________________________________ 

Page 17



 

 

____________________________________________________________ 

Consultation: 

Not applicable 

____________________________________________________________ 

Legal Implications: 

Under the legislation the Council is required to determine representations.  The report 
is in accordance with the appropriate legislation. 

The costs of the licensing function are funded through the fees and charges levied by 

the Council. There may be additional costs if appeals are lodged with the Magistrates 
and Crown Courts.  

Members are advised that Licences are regarded as possessions within the terms of 

the Human Rights Act 1998.  Under the Act everyone is entitled to the peaceful 

enjoyment of one’s possessions and so actions interfering with those possessions must 

be lawful, reasonable and proportionate. It is lawful to impose reasonable conditions 

as a way of protecting the safety of the travelling public, so long as it is not out of 
proportion. It is a balancing act between the public interest and the individual’s rights. 

The policy changes recommended, if agreed by the Council, will be implemented and 

form the basis on which decisions are made on applications for vehicle licences 
received by the Council. 

____________________________________________________________ 

Financial Implications: 

Revenue and Capital: The Licensing Regime is a self-funded service through the 

licensing fees. There are no financial implications as a result of this report as the 

changes do not have any cost implications to the Council.  

____________________________________________________________   

 

Report Author and Contact Details: 

Mr M Bridge 
Licensing Office 
3 Knowsley Place 
Duke Street 
Bury 
Telephone No:  0161 253 5209 
Email: m.bridge@bury.gov.uk 
____________________________________________________________ 

Background papers:  

Licensing and Safety Committee report and minutes – 22 February 2024 
Full Council Minutes – 20 March 2024 
 
Please include a glossary of terms, abbreviations and acronyms used in this 

report.   

Page 18



 

 

Term  Meaning  

CAZ Clean Air Zone 

CTF Clean Taxi Fund 

EIA Equality Impact Assessment 

GM Greater Manchester 

GM CAP Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan 

HCV Hackney Carriage 

ICE Internal Combustion Engine 

PHV Private Hire Vehicle 

 
1.0 Background 

1.1 Members will recall that on the 22 February 2024, a report was considered by 
Licensing and Safety Committee regarding a review of emissions standard 
transitional implementation date for existing Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
vehicles to compliant vehicle in respect of proposed GM Clean Air Plan, Members 
resolved: 

1.2 It was agreed by the Licensing and Safety Committee to adopt the following 
amendment (1) to the existing emission standard and recommended to Full 
Council that the amendment (1) be approved: 

1.3 For existing vehicle licence proprietors: 

That the transitional arrangements amended by Full Council on the 22 March 
2023, in relation to age and emissions, previously extended from the 1 April 
2024 to the 1 April 2026, are amended again and to be in effect from the 1 
January 2026. This will enable hackney carriage and private hire vehicle owners 
to meet the agreed GM emissions standard outlined in the revised GM Clean Air 
Plan submissions. The amended policy will state that from the 31 December 
2024 a vehicle licence will not be renewed if the vehicle does not meet the 
current emission standard.  

1.4 On the 20 March 2024, Full Council ratified the above recommendation from the 
Licensing and Safety Committee. 

 

 

 

 

Page 19



 

 

Information 

1.5 The report “GM Clean Air the GM Air Quality Administration Committee on 20 
December 2023. The report was agreed by the Committee and provided an 
update on the Case for a new Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan and confirms 
that an appraisal of GM’s proposed investment-led plan has been undertaken 
against a benchmark charging Clean Air Zone (CAZ) in the centre of Manchester 
and Salford. 

1.6 Using the government’s updated technical guidance, that ‘no air quality benefit’ 
should be assumed from bus retrofit, GM now has evidence to show that its 
investment-led, non-charging Clean Air Plan can deliver compliance with the 
government direction to bring nitrogen dioxide levels within legal limits in 2025. 

1.7 Modelling predicts if GM did nothing there would be twelve exceedances of 
nitrogen dioxide in 2025. The majority of these would be in the regional centres 
of – Manchester and Salford. 

1.8 GM’s investment-led plan proposes using £86.7 million Clean Air funding already 
awarded, for investment in zero-emission buses, taxi and private hire vehicle 
upgrades (through a Clean Taxi Fund) and measures to manage traffic flows on 
some roads in the centre of Manchester and Salford. 

1.9 Modelling shows GM’s investment-led plan can achieve compliance in 2025 and 
that compliance is not achieved in 2025 or 2026 by a benchmarked category C 
charging CAZ. 

1.10 The TFGM evidence shows that the investment-led, non-charging plan can 
achieve compliance in 2025. However, it is for government to determine what 
measures GM is to implement – only the Investment-led Plan complies with the 
requirement placed on the 10 GM local authorities to deliver compliance in the 
shortest possible time and by 2026 at the latest. 

Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle (PHV) Measures  

1.11 Taxi and PHV measures represent an important mechanism for reducing 
exceedances under the Investment-led Plan and are grounded in the ability of 
the GM authorities to reduce emissions through licensing conditions.  

1.12 The appraisal of the Investment-led Plan has been developed on the basis that 
an emissions standard, requiring licensed hackneys and PHVs to be a minimum 
of Euro 6 (diesel) or Euro 4 (petrol) by 31 December 2025, will have been 
adopted by all GM Authorities.  

1.13 This means that licences issued by Bury will have to have a compliant vehicle 
attached to the licence by 31 December 2025 at the latest. Licensees can apply 
at any time during the currency of their licence to replace the vehicle attached 
to that licence, and therefore must ensure that they have sourced and 
purchased an emissions compliant vehicle in good time to ensure they have a 
compliant vehicle licensed by 31 December 2025.  

1.14 The Council’s current licensed vehicle emissions policy is a petrol vehicle must 
be Euro 4 and a diesel vehicle must be a Euro 6.  

Page 20



 

 

1.15 In the investment led plan, it is therefore assumed that by 2026 100% of the 
GM taxi fleet will be compliant with the emission standards with all GM 
Authorities working to achieve this.  It is intended that the potential Clean Taxi 
Fund will support this by providing sufficient funds for every current non-
emission compliant vehicle licensed to a GM authority to receive grant support 
(if applicable). Further if the fund is opened before 2025 this will enable earlier 
upgrades, and help to mitigate against the risk of taxis re-licensing with another 
authority that does not have the same emission standard requirement. 

1.16 A Clean Taxi Fund (CTF) of £30.5m is proposed to offer funding to support 
upgrades of taxis to cleaner vehicles through two routes. These are: 

 Core Taxi Fund of £22.5m – based on the 2021 GM CAP Policy, the 
potential funding is eligible to non-compliant, GM-licensed hackneys and 
PHVs.  The financial support has been uplifted with inflation, with an 
associated air quality benefit derived from minimum emission standards 
across the 10 GM Authorities. 

 Electric Hackney Upgrade Fund of £7.9m – based on the Bradford scheme 
and feedback received during GM’s Participatory Policy Development, the 
potential funding will be available to compliant Internal Combustion 
Engine (ICE) hackneys and seeks to support upgrades to the cleanest 
vehicle type whilst taking into account feedback. 

1.17 The Air Quality Administration Committee recommended that each GM Authority 
puts appropriate arrangements in place to facilitate a transitional start date for 
the implementation of emission standards by the 1 January 2025 with the end 
transition date being the 31 December 2025. Ultimately it is for the government 
to determine what measures GM is to implement, the appraisal shows that only 
the Investment-led Plan complies with the requirement placed on the 10 GM 
Authorities to deliver compliance in the shortest possible time and by 2026 at 
the latest.  

1.18 The report has been submitted to the Secretary of State for Environment, Food 
and Rural Affairs setting out that whilst we await their response the GM 
Authorities will, on the anticipation of the Clean Taxi Fund being agreed, make 
preparations to ensure a minimum taxi emissions standard will have been 
adopted by all GM Authorities. 

2.0    Bury Council’s position 

2.1 The transitional arrangements were initially agreed by Full Council on 24 

November 2021 with subsequent amendments to the implementation date for 

transitional arrangements on 22 March 2023, in relation to age and emissions 

standards extending from 1 April 2024 to 1 April 2026. The current transitional 

arrangements that were agreed at Full Council on the 20 March 2024. 

This report seeks approval to amend the current policy by permitting existing 

vehicle proprietors of current non complaint hackney carriage and private hire 

vehicles to make a renewal application after the 1 January 2025. The non-

compliant vehicle would be subject to a compliance test at either of the Council’s 

approved testing stations. Provided the vehicle passes the compliance test it will 

Page 21



 

 

be issued with a 12-month licence vehicle licence. The vehicle licence would be 

granted subject to a condition that the non-compliant vehicle is removed from 
the fleet and replaced with a compliant vehicle by the 31 December 2025. 

In addition to the above, subject to the Members of the Licensing and Safety 

Committee approving this report the Licensing Service are requesting delegation 

to the Head of Public Protection/Licensing Unit Manager and/or the Deputy 

Licensing Officer to suspend any vehicle licence that has been issued to a non-

complaint vehicle after the 1 January 2025 where the vehicle proprietor(s) have 

not complied with the condition of the vehicle licence to replace the non-
compliant vehicle with a compliant vehicle by the 31 December 2025. 

2.2 The Licensing Service reviewed the fleet data on the 11 January 2024 and have 

identified following the assessment of all 760 licensed vehicles at that time. Bury 

had 225 (29.6%) non complaint vehicles which consist of 193 (25.4%) Private 
hire vehicle and 32 (4.2%) Hackney Carriages. 

2.3 Table 1 shows the numbers of vehicles that were not compliant between the 

period of January 2024 until January 2025 (as of January 2024).

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17
15

22

17

21

15 14

10

6

22

27

34

5

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24 Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25

Emissions Non Compliant PHV & HCV 

Page 22



 

 

2.4 Table 2 shows the numbers of vehicles that were not compliant by renewal date 
between the period of January 2024 until January 2025 (as of January 2024). 

 
 

 
2.5 Table 3 shows the numbers of vehicles that were not compliant by date of 

vehicle registration (as of January 2024). 
 

 
 

2.6 The Licensing Service have reviewed the fleet data on the 29 July 2024 and 
have identified following the assessment of all 742 licensed vehicles we currently 
have 160 (21.5%) non complaint vehicles which consist of 130 (17.5%) Private 
hire vehicle and 30 (4%) Hackney Carriages. 
 

1
2

4

1
0

3
2

0
1

4
5

8

1

16

13

18
16

21

12 12
10

5

18

22

26

4

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24 Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25

Non Compliant Vehicle Renewal Date 

HCV PHV

1 1 1 3 3 2 4 3 2
6

3 3
00 0 0 0 0 1 0 2

8

50
54

76

2

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

2001 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Non Compliance Vehicle Date of Registration

HCV PHV

Page 23



 

 

2.7 Table 4 shows the numbers of vehicles that are not compliant between the 
period of January 2024 until January 2025 as of July 2024 (as of July 2024). 
 
 

 
 
 
2.8 Table 5 shows the numbers of vehicles that are not compliant by renewal date 

between the period of January 2024 until January 2025 as of July 2024 (as of 
July 2024). 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



 

 

2.9 Table 6 shows the numbers of vehicles that are not compliant by date of vehicle 
registration as of July 2024 (as of July 2024). 
 

 
 

2.10 Members will note that the numbers of non-complaint vehicles have dropped 
from 225 in January 2024 to 160 in July 2024. Reduction of 65 vehicles -  
63 Private Hire vehicles and 2 Hackney Carriages. 
 

2.11 The Licensing Service have not undertaken an engagement exercise with the 
affected Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Trade vehicle proprietors. The 
reason for this was to enable this matter to be considered by members given 
the emission standard is bound by the Councils requirement to comply with a 
Government Directive in relation to air quality.  

 
2.12 Members should note that there is no amendment to the Council’s Policy to new 

vehicles coming on to fleet as these vehicles must be either Euro 4 Petrol or 
Euro 6 Diesel and must comply with the Council’s age policy. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 25



 

 

3.0 Proposal to deal to deal with non-compliant vehicles 
 

3.1 Flowchart for the issuing of a licence and vehicle change 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  

Vehicle Licence of the non-

compliant vehicle issued 
with new condition 

Application to renew non-compliant vehicle 

Vehicle is presented to one of the Council’s 

authorised testing stations 

Vehicle Change application to 

licence a compliant vehicle is 

submitted. Payment of 

application fee and cost of 
vehicle compliance test fee  

New Vehicle is presented to 

one of the Council’s 
authorised testing stations.  

 

Licence Suspended due to not 

replacing non-compliant 

Vehicle before the 31 

December 2025 

Vehicle Change application to 

licence a compliant vehicle is 

submitted. Payment of 

application fee and cost of 
vehicle compliance test fee  

 

Vehicle is presented to one of 

the Council’s authorised 

testing stations 

 

 Provided Vehicle passes – 

Vehicle licence issued for the 

remainder of the original 
licence period 

 

Due to legislation requirements if 

vehicle not changed within the 

two-month period, vehicle 
licence is revoked 

Vehicle proprietor purchases 
new compliant vehicle 

1 January 2025 
 

1 January 2026 
 

 

Provided Vehicle passes – 

Vehicle licence issued for the 

remainder of the original 
licence period 

Vehicle not 
changed 

Page 26



 

 

4.0 Conclusion  
 

4.1 This report seeks approval to amend the current policy by permitting existing 

vehicle proprietors of current non complaint hackney carriage and private hire 

vehicles to make a renewal application after the 1 January 2025. The non-

compliant vehicle would be subject to a compliance test at either of the Council’s 

approved testing stations. Provided the vehicle passes the compliance test it will 

be issued with a 12-month licence vehicle licence. The vehicle licence would be 

granted for a twelve-month period and subject to an additional condition that 

the non-compliant vehicle is removed from the fleet and replaced with a 
compliant vehicle no later than the 31 December 2025. 

4.2  In addition to the above, subject to the Members of the Licensing and Safety 

Committee approving this report the Licensing Service are also requesting 

delegation to the Head of Public Protection/Licensing Unit Manager and/or the 

Deputy Licensing Officer in conjunction with the Chair of Licensing & Safety 

Committee to suspend any vehicle licence that has been issued to a non-

complaint vehicle after the 1 January 2025 where the vehicle proprietor(s) have 

not complied with the condition of the vehicle licence to replace the non-
compliant vehicle with a compliant vehicle by the 31 December 2025. 

4.3 A further request of delegation to the Head of Public Protection/Licensing Unit 

Manager to amend Council Policy that relates to the transitional arrangements 

for existing vehicle proprietors who own non-compliant vehicles to enable access 

to the potential clean taxi fund when it becomes available. Any decisions made 

would be reported in the Operational Report at the next meeting of the Licensing 
and Safety Committee. 

4.4  If these recommendations are not approved by the Licensing and Safety 
Committee it will mean that vehicle proprietors of a non-compliant vehicle would 
not be able to access the Clean Taxi Fund and they would not be able to renew 
their vehicle licence after the 31 December 2024 and may prevent and/or 
disadvantage vehicle proprietors of non-compliant vehicles in Bury from 
accessing future potential GM clean taxi funding. 

 
5.0  Recommendations 

5.1  It is recommended that the Licensing and Safety Committee considers and 

adopts the following amendment (1) (2) and (3) to the existing emission 

standard and recommends to Full Council that amendment (1) (2) and (3) be 

approved: 

5.2 For existing vehicle licence proprietors with a non-complaint vehicle: 

1. A vehicle proprietor of a hackney carriage and private hire vehicle licence 
that is due for renewal after the 1 January 2025 which is non-compliant 
with emission standards (EURO 4 Petrol vehicles and EURO 6 diesel 
vehicles) is permitted to make an application to renew the vehicle licence 
and provided the vehicle passes its compliance test it will be issued with a 
12-month vehicle licence. The vehicle licence would be granted subject to 

Page 27



 

 

a condition that the non-compliant vehicle is removed from the fleet and 
replaced with a Euro 4 or 6 compliant vehicle by the 31 December 2025. 

2. To delegate powers to the Head of Public Protection/Licensing Unit Manager 
and/or the Deputy Licensing Officer to suspend any vehicle licence that has 
been issued after the 1 January 2025 where the vehicle proprietor(s) have 
not complied with the condition to replace the non-compliant vehicle with 
a compliant vehicle by the 31 December 2025. 

3. To request delegation to the Head of Public Protection/Licensing Unit 
Manager in consultation with the Chair of the Licensing and Safety 
Committee to amend Council Policy that relates to the transitional 
arrangements for existing vehicle proprietors who own non-compliant 
vehicles to enable access to the clean taxi fund if it becomes available. Any 
decisions made would be reported in the Operational Report at the next 
meeting of the Licensing and Safety Committee. 

 

 
REPORT ENDS 

Page 28



Document is Restricted

Page 29 Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	Minutes

	5 OPERATIONAL REPORT
	6 REVIEW OF TRANSITIONAL ARRANGEMENTS FOR EXISTING HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES IN RESPECT OF EMISSIONS STANDARDS
	9 SUSPENSION / REVOCATION OF PUBLIC / PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCES

